
 

 

Executive Member Decisions 
 

Friday, 1st October, 2021 
 
 
 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
1.   Disposal of Burnley Road Commercial Development 

Site, Blackburn 
 

 EMD - Disposal of Burnley Road Commercial 
Development Site, Blackburn 
EMD Part 2 - Disposal of Burnley Road Commercial 
Development Site 
Appendix A - BURNLEY ROAD SITE PLAN 
EIA Checklist -  Disposal of Burnley Road Commercial 
Development Site 

2 - 11 

 
 

Date Published: 1st October 2021  
Denise Park, Chief Executive 

 

Public Document Pack



Executive Member Decision 

 

REPORT OF: Executive Member for Finance and Governance, 
Executive Member for Growth and Development 

LEAD OFFICERS: Strategic Director of Place 

DATE: 
 

Friday, 3 September 2021 

 

PORTFOLIO(S) AFFECTED: Growth and Development  

WARD/S AFFECTED: Audley & Queens Park;  

 

SUBJECT: 

EMD Disposal of Burnley Road Commercial Development Site, Blackburn 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 To seek approval to appoint a preferred bidder and reserve bidder for the sale of Burnley Road 
Commercial Development Site, Blackburn and enter into a building licence and subsequent 
agreement for sale. 
 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the Executive Members: 
 
2.1 Approve the appointment of the preferred bidder, entering into a building licence and 
subsequent agreement for sale. 
 
2.2 Approve the appointment of the reserve bidder in the event of the preferred bidder not 
proceeding with the transaction. 
 
2.3 Authorise the Director of HR, Governance & Engagement to complete the necessary legal 
formalities. 
 
2.4 Authorise the Growth Programme Director to finalise details of the building licence and heads 
of terms. 
 
2.5 Authorise the Growth Programme Director to instruct the Local Highway Authority to carry out 
widening works to Didsbury St, the costs of which shall be deducted from the gross land receipt. 

 
2.6 Authorise the Director of HR, Governance & Engagement to advertise the proposal to dispose 
of ‘open space’ in accordance with the statutory process under s.123(2A) of the Local Government 
Act 1972. 

 
2.7 Authorise the Growth Programme Director to consider any objections to the ‘open space’ 
disposal. 
 

 

3. BACKGROUND 

3.1 Burnley Road Commercial Development Site, Blackburn comprises approximately 1.4 acres of 
commercial development land and was offered for sale by informal tender on 15th April 2021 with a 

Page 2

Agenda Item 1



closing date of 14th June 2021. The Council’s preference was bids for owner occupied light 
industrial use. 
 
3.2 The site was previously marketed in 2019, however, the appointed bidder pulled out of the 
transaction prior to exchanging contracts. Subsequent remarketing of the site was halted 
temporarily due to the Covid 19 pandemic. 
 
3.3 Six compliant bids were received by the closing date of 14th June 2021 as follows: 
Bidder A (for an owner occupied showroom), 
Bidder B (for part owner occupied / part let light industrial use), 
Bidder C (for owner occupied storage and distribution), 
Bidder D (for part owner occupied / part let light industrial use), 
Bidder E (for speculative commercial units), and 
Bidder F (for speculative commercial units). 
 
3.4 The following bids were dismissed: 
Bidder A (financial offer significantly lower than all other bids) 
Bidder E (speculative development with no identified end users and no owner occupation) 
Bidder F (speculative development with no identified end users and no owner occupation) 
 
3.5 Letters requesting clarification of various parts of the bids were issued to Bidders B, C and D, 
with an opportunity to provide revised financial offers. Clarifications were received, with Bidders B 
and C increasing their offers. Clarification letters confirmed anticipated full time job creation of 15 
for Bidder B, 28 for Bidder C and 34 for Bidder D.  
 
3.6 Following this exercise, Bidder D is considered to have provided the most favourable tender 
return due to the quality of the submission, the higher value offered and the number of jobs 
created. They propose to submit a planning application upon exchange for 29,000 sq ft of light 
industrial space to be 55% occupied by the bidder and used for manufacturing; and 45% to be 
occupied by a pharmaceutical distributor. The proposed construction start date is November 2021 
with the two units being ready for occupation in 2022. 
 
3.7 Construction will be carried out under a building licence, with the freehold of the site 
transferred to the developer under completion, to ensure the development is built out within an 
acceptable timeframe. 
 
3.8 It is proposed that Bidder C is appointed as reserve bidder, giving the Council an opportunity 
to re-engage with them should the preferred bidder not complete the transaction. Bidder C 
provided the second most favourable tender return due to the value offered, proposed owner 
occupier use and job creation. 
 

 

4. KEY ISSUES & RISKS 

4.1 Bidder D has submitted a compliant tender bid with an acceptable indicative scheme, subject 
to detailed planning assessment, and have offered the highest site value. It is recommended that 
the Council proceeds with the transaction, with Bidder D as preferred bidder. 
 
4.2 Should Bidder D not proceed, the Council will enter into discussions with Bidder C, the reserve 
bidder. 
 
4.3 Should the transaction not be completed with either bidder then the Council will explore other 
options for the site and re-tender or offer for sale via auction. 
 

Page 3



4.4 The Council will carry out widening works to Didsbury Street, the cost of which shall be 
deducted from the gross land receipt. These works are currently in the process of being designed 
and costed, and are anticipated to cost well within the offered land value. 
 
4.5 As the land has previously been open to the public and historically been used for recreational 
purposes it is necessary to consider it as ‘open space’. A proposed disposal of open space must 
follow the requirements of s.123(2A) of the Local Government Act 1972. This requires the Council 
to advertise the proposal twice over two consecutive weeks in a newspaper circulating in the area 
in which the land is situated, erect site notices, and consider any objections to the proposed 
disposal. 
 

 

5. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 The disposal method accords with the Council’s approved policy for disposals. 
 

 

6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 The Council will receive a gross capital receipt. The cost of the highway widening works shall 
be deducted from this receipt. 
 
6.2 The preferred bidder will cover the Council’s legal and surveyor fees calculated as 2% of the 
offered land value, up to an agreed cap. 
 

 

7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 The disposal method complies with the Council’s legal obligations for such transactions and 
with the Council’s Disposal Policy 2019. 
 

 

8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 Legal and surveyor resources will be required to complete the transaction 
 

 

9. EQUALITY AND HEALTH IMPLICATIONS 

Please select one of the options below.   
 

Option 1   ☒ Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) not required – the EIA checklist has been 

 completed. 
 

Option 2   ☐ In determining this matter the Executive Member needs to consider the EIA 

 associated with this item in advance of making the decision.  
 

 

10. CONSULTATIONS 

10.1 The proposal has been subject to consultations between Council Officers, Executive 
members, and Legal and Planning departments 
 

 

11. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

The recommendations are made further to advice from the Monitoring Officer and the Section 151 
Officer has confirmed that they do not incur unlawful expenditure.  They are also compliant with 
equality legislation and an equality analysis and impact assessment has been considered. The 
recommendations reflect the core principles of good governance set out in the Council’s Code of 
Corporate Governance. Page 4



 
 

12. DECLARATION OF INTEREST 

All Declarations of Interest of any Executive Member consulted and note of any dispensation 
granted by the Chief Executive will be recorded in the Summary of Decisions published. 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Alex Wildman, Commercial Developments and Asset Manager 

DATE: 23rd August 2021 

BACKGROUND 
PAPER: 

None 

    

Page 5



Document is Restricted

Page 6

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



82

144

Church

St Teresa's

B
E
N

T
L
E
Y

 S
T
R
E
E
T

Britannia Mill

HOLE HOUSE
171

1

11

125

50

134.6m

113

153

Skatepark

Bowling Green

1

2

1

D
ID

S
B

U
R
Y

 S
T
R

E
E
T

135.3m

Sub Sta

75

3

91

101

BURNLEY ROAD

73

Presbytery

124

139

Shelter

134

Durbar Mill

43

132.6m

1

11

El

47

45

135

Ward Bdy

TCB

Playground

G
O

R
S
E
 S

T
R
E
E
T

132.6m

130.1m

19

23

31

17

DIDSBURY STREET27

29

15

Vicarage

21

25

13

St Jude's Church

49
55

43 41

Gas Gov

H
O
L
E
 H

O
U

S
E
 S

T
R
E
E
T

STR
EET

167

136.6m

K
EN

Y
O

N

18

w
in
g P

ath

131.7m

© Crown copyright and database rights 2018. Ordnance Survey licence number: 100019493

Page 10



 

Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council   v1.0 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT CHECKLIST 
 
This checklist is to be used when you are uncertain if your activity requires an EIA or not. 
 
An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is a tool for identifying the potential impact of the organisation’s 
policies, services and functions on its residents and staff. EIAs should be actively looking for negative or 
adverse impacts of policies, services and functions on any of the nine protected characteristics.   
 
The checklist below contains a number of questions/prompts to assist officers and service managers to 
assess whether or not the activity proposed requires an EIA. Supporting literature and useful questions are 
supplied within the EIA Guidance to assist managers and team leaders to complete all EIAs. 

 
Service area 
& dept. 

Growth and Development 
 Date the activity will 

be implemented 
03/09/2021 

  

Brief 
description 
of activity 

Disposal of Burnley Road Commercial Development Site, Blackburn 

 

Answers 
favouring 
doing an 

EIA 

Checklist question 
Answers 

favouring not 
doing an EIA 

☐  Yes 

Does this activity involve any of the following: 

☒  No - Commissioning / decommissioning a service                - Budget changes 

- Change to existing Council policy/strategy 

☐  Yes 
Does the activity impact negatively on any of the protected characteristics as 
stated within the Equality Act (2010)? 

☒  No 

☐  No 

☐  Not sure 

Is there a sufficient information / intelligence with regards to service uptake and 
customer profiles to understand the activity’s implications? 

☒  Yes 

☐  Yes 

☐  Not sure 

Does this activity: 

☒  No 

 

Contribute towards unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 
other conduct prohibited by the Act  
(i.e. the activity creates or increases disadvantages suffered by people due to their 
protected characteristic) 

☐  Yes 

☐  Not sure 

Reduce equality of opportunity between those who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not  
(i.e. the activity fail to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these 
are different from the needs of other people) 

☒  No 

 

☐  Yes 

☐  Not sure 

Foster poor relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not  
(i.e. the function prevents people from protected groups to participate in public life 
or in other activities where their participation is disproportionately low) 

☒  No 

 

FOR = 0 TOTAL AGAINST = 6 

 

Will you now be completing an EIA?       ☐ Yes  ☒ No 

The EIA toolkit can be found here  
 

Assessment Lead Signature Alex Wildman 

Checked by departmental  
E&D Lead  

☒ Yes  ☐ No Gwen Kinloch 

Date 23/08/2021 

 

 

Page 11

http://cms.intra.blackburn.gov.uk/server.php?show=nav.3584
http://cms.intra.blackburn.gov.uk/server.php?show=nav.3584

	Agenda
	1 Disposal of Burnley Road Commercial Development Site, Blackburn
	EMD Part 2 - Disposal of Burnley Road Commercial Development Site
	Appendix A - BURNLEY ROAD SITE PLAN
	EIA Checklist -  Disposal of Burnley Road Commercial Development Site


